
Summons to Meeting

Friday 15 September 2017

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Wednesday 20 September 2017, 10.00 am

Council Chamber, Allerdale House
Membership:

Councillor Janet Farebrother (Chair) Councillor Alan Pitcher (Co-Chair)
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor Bill Finlay
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Hilary Harrington
Councillor Joe Holliday Councillor Billy Miskelly
Councillor Jim Osborn Councillor Bill Pegram
Councillor Celia Tibble Councillor Martin Wood

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Ian Hinde on 01900 702544.

Agenda
1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 8)
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 11 August 2017.

3. Declaration of Interests  
Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda, in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct.

4. Questions  
To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 working days before the meeting.

Page 1



5. Public Participation  
To hear representations from members of the public on items which appear on 
the agenda – submitted in writing or by electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 
working days before the meeting.

6. Call-in: Reducing Inequalities - Access to Affordable Loans and Savings  
(Pages 9 - 40)

Monitoring Officer

Date of Next Meeting:

Friday 29 September 2017, 10.00 am
Council Chamber, Allerdale House

Page 2



At a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held in Council Chamber, 
Allerdale House on Friday 11 August 2017 at 10.00 am

Members

Councillor Janet Farebrother (Chair) Councillor Bill Finlay
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor Billy Miskelly
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Bill Pegram
Councillor Jim Osborn Councillor Celia Tibble

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Alan Pitcher, Councillor Hilary 
Harrington, Councillor Joe Holliday and Councillor Martin Wood

Staff Present

B Carlin, D Devine, A FitzGerald and I Hinde

Also Present

Councillor J Sandwith and P Tibble and L Elder

97. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 23 June 2017 were signed as a correct 
record.

98. Declaration of Interests 

None declared.

99. Questions 

None received.

100. Public Participation 

None received.

101. West Cumbria Community Safety Partnership Annual Review 

The Acting Scrutiny Officer submitted a report which sought to provide an 
update to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the West Cumbria 
Community Safety Partnership.

L Elder, West Cumbria Community Safety Partnership Co-ordinator and 
Councillor P Tibble, Chair of the Community Safety Partnership Strategy Group 
delivered a presentation on the partnership to members.

The West Cumbria Community Safety Partnership Plan for 2017-18 was tabled 
at the meeting.

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Members noted the partnership’s work around tackling its five main priorities 
around anti-social behaviour, re-offending and acquisitive crime, violent crime, 
domestic and sexual violence and alcohol and substance misuse.

Agreed

That:

1. the West Cumbria Community Safety Partnership Plan for 2017-18 be 
noted

2. the Overview and Scrutiny Committee continues to receive an annual 
report on the West Cumbria Community Safety Partnership

102. Community Services Business Model - Appointment of a Task and Finish 
Group 

The Acting Scrutiny Officer submitted a report which sought agreement from the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to establish a Community Services Business 
Model Task and Finish Group and then to appoint a Chair and set the group’s 
terms of reference.

The group was established with the following members:

Councillor M Grainger
Councillor H Harrington
Councillor B Miskelly
Councillor R Munby
Councillor B Pegram

Councillor M Grainger was appointed Chair of the group.

The terms of reference of the group as set out in section 4 of the report were 
agreed.

Agreed

That:

1. a Task and Finish Group be established to consider the process of letting 
the Community Services Business Model contract

2. Councillor M Grainger be appointed as Chair of the Task and Finish 
Group and be responsible for managing the group and reporting its 
findings to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

3. the membership of the Task and Finish Group be as follows:

Councillor M Grainger
Councillor H Harrington
Councillor B Miskelly
Councillor R Munby

Page 4



Councillor B Pegram

4. the Task and Finish Group identify any potential members to be co-opted 
at the scoping stage

5. the Task and Finish Group’s terms of reference be agreed as set out in 
section 4 of the report

6. the Task and Finish Group follow the agreed terms of reference and 
keep the Overview and Scrutiny Committee updated

7. the Task and Finish Group scope the piece of work applying the scoping 
exercise template

8. the Task and Finish Group report its findings, conclusions and 
recommendations to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

103. Quarterly Performance - Appointment of a Task Group 

The Acting Scrutiny Officer submitted a report which sought agreement from the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to establish a Task Group to monitor the 
Council’s quarterly performance and financial reports and then to appoint a 
Chair and set the group’s terms of reference.

The group was established with the following members:

Councillor J Farebrother
Councillor A Pitcher
Councillor B Finlay
Councillor D Wilson

The terms of reference of the group as set out in section 4 of the report were 
agreed.

Agreed

That:

1. a Task Group be established to consider the quarterly performance and 
quarterly finance reports

2. Councillor A Pitcher be appointed as Chair of the Task Group and be 
responsible for managing the group and reporting its findings to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Chairmanship of this Task Group 
would be a responsibility of the Co-Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

3. the membership of the Task Group be agreed as follows:

Councillor J Farebrother
Councillor A Pitcher
Councillor B Finlay

Page 5



Councillor D Wilson

4. the Task Group identify additional co-opted members at the scoping 
stage

5. the Task Group’s terms of reference be agreed as set out in section 4 of 
the report

6. the Task Group follow the agreed terms of reference and keep the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee updated

7. the Task Group scope the piece of work applying the scoping exercise 
template

8. the Task Group report its findings, conclusions and recommendations to 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

104. Forward Plan 

Members noted the Forward Plan 1 August 2017 – 31 July 2018.

Agreed

That the Forward Plan 1 August 2017 – 31 July 2018 be noted.

105. Work Programme and Outcomes Monitoring 

Members noted the Overview and Scrutiny Committee work programme.

Councillor B Miskelly provided an update on the Allerdale Tackling Poverty 
Strategy and Action Plan Task and Finish Group. The group had met twice 
since its establishment at the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting on 23 
June 2017 and had received a presentation on pathways to employment.

The Committee considered topics to focus on during its scrutiny of the delivery 
of the Housing Strategy at its next meeting. Raising housing standards in the 
private rented sector and reducing the number of long term empty homes were 
agreed as the first themes to consider.

Councillor B Finlay raised concerns over the work programme around overview 
and scrutiny of the budget setting process for 2018-19. The item was to be 
considered at the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting on 3 November 
2017. This, he felt, was too late in the process to scrutinise. It was agreed that 
the item be considered at the next meeting on 29 September 2017.

Agreed

That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee work programme and outcomes be 
noted.

The meeting closed at 12.15 pm

Page 6



Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Allerdale Borough Council

Reducing Inequalities – Access to affordable loans and savings

6 September 2017

The Subject of the Decision The Council plan sets out the priorities for the 
Council in 2017/8. One of the priorities is to 
reduce inequalities, this report sets out the 
Council’s proposal to reducing financial 
inequalities. The plan states that the Council will 
aim to reduce poverty and support people facing 
financial difficulties.

In particular, the Council Business Plan sets out 
that the Council will support people to deal with 
money problems by working with partners such 
as the credit union to promote safe credit 
sources.

The Reason for the Decision The Council has been a partner in developing 
Credit Unions (CU) across Allerdale and the wider 
West Cumbria area for over 20 years. 

The history of CUs in Allerdale was based on a 
number of community based CUs in Workington 
and Maryport. In 2010 these CUs merged to 
create the Allerdale CU. In 2015, Allerdale CU 
and Cleator Moor CU merged to form the West 
Cumbria Credit Union (WCCU).

The new, larger CU has ambitious plans to 
reduce the number of residents who use high 
interest doorstep lenders and high street 
organisations.

At present the total consumer debt in Allerdale 
alone is over £450m, the WCCU growth plan set 
out in this report aims to reduce the amount of 
interest paid out by Allerdale residents by £2.1m 
over the next 4 years. Enabling this money to be 
used productively in the Allerdale area.

Recommendations That Members agree:

 To support the development of WCCU

Page 15



 To support the development of its growth 
plan including the development of a new 
Workington Town Centre branch, the 
Allerdale Account and rebranding and 
marketing

 To support WCCU with £250,000 from the 
Council’s Priorities Fund of £451,000 over 
the next four years

Climate Change/Environmental 
Implications

None

Community Safety Implications None

Financial/Resource Implications To release over the next 4 years £220,300 from 
the Priorities Fund agreed by Council when 
setting the Council budget for 2017/8

Human Rights Implications None

Employment Implications None

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

None 

Data Quality Implications None

Equality Impact Assessment 
completed

Yes

Wards Affected All

The Contribution this Decision 
would make to the Council’s Key 
Aims

Reducing Inequalities

Is this a Key Decision Yes

Portfolio Holder Cllr. Alan Smith - Leader

Lead Member of Staff Andrew Seekings

Background Papers West Cumbria Credit Union Business Plan
ABC Business Plan

Page 16



1.0 Introduction

1.1 The Council plan sets out the priorities for the Council in 2017/8. One of the 
priorities is to reduce inequalities. This report sets out the Council’s proposal to 
reducing financial inequalities. The plan states that the Council will aim to reduce 
poverty and support people facing financial difficulties.

1.2 In particular, the Council Business Plan sets out that the Council will support 
people to deal with money problems by working with partners such as the credit 
union to promote safe credit sources.

1.3 As part of the budget agreed by Council, £451,000 was included to support the 
Council’s priorities.

1.4 West Cumbria Credit Union (WCCU) provides secure, guaranteed savings and 
affordable loans to over 3,800 local people in the districts of Allerdale and 
Copeland. It also has an additional 1,100 junior savers under 16.

1.5 WCCU is a not-for-profit co-operative that aims to keep members' charges and 
fees to an absolute minimum. The Credit Union has three main offices - in 
Maryport, Cleator Moor and Workington - as well as a number of collection points 
and information centres around West Cumbria

1.6 WCCU currently has five (4.8 FTE) members of staff with a current lending level 
of approximately £600,000, this is less than 0.1% of overall borrowing across the 
region.

1.7 In many cases, local residents are using doorstep lenders and high street 
organisations that charge significantly higher interest rates than WCCU. At 
present, for many residents, WCCU have much more affordable products but this 
is not reflected in the market share. 

2.0 Background

2.1 The challenge for WCCU is two-fold: first, that it is not achieving the key aim of 
reducing the number of residents resorting to high interest lenders; and without 
this, it is not achieving its own sustainable future.

2.2 WCCU has gone through significant change over the past few years. Initially, 
neighbourhood based credit unions were formed in West Cumbria, some over 
twenty years ago. In Allerdale, Workington and Maryport merged in 2010, and in 
2015, Allerdale CU and Cleator Moor CU merged to form the West Cumbria 
Credit Union.

2.3 This has also led to a significant strengthening of the Board of Directors, and a 
clear sense that WCCU should be doing more to reduce the amount of interest 
being charged to, and paid by, local residents from a variety of lenders. These 
can often trap people into long term debt through minimum repayment terms that 
mean that residents continue to be in significant debt with high levels of interest.

Page 17

https://allerdalecreditunion.org.uk/contact-details.php#collection-points
https://allerdalecreditunion.org.uk/contact-details.php#collection-points


2.4 The current WCCU manager has recently left the organisation and the Board of 
Directors have agreed to recruit a Chief Operating Officer to drive forward the 
organisation and increase the number of loans.

3.0 The context - Household Debt in Allerdale and Child Poverty

Across the country, household debt has been on the increase for a number of years, 
and significant debt is now seen as the ‘norm’ for many households. Key issues are:

 Allerdale is not different, with unsecured debt per household now estimated to be 
£13.3k (source: ONS 2017), this excludes mortgages and secured car finance

 It is now estimated that in Allerdale 1 in 6 are classed as being over indebted 
with more than 25% of household income going towards unsecured debt 
repayments

 In Allerdale alone, it is now estimated that the total of this indebtedness is over 
£450m

 There is a growing trend of over indebtedness amongst in-work families and 
there are now 60% of all children in poverty within families where at least one 
adult works.

 The latest available government data available shows that 14.8% of children in 
Allerdale are living in poverty. This is below national levels of 18.0% for England 
and above the Cumbria level of 13.8%, however, the picture for Allerdale as a 
whole disguises significant inequalities in levels of child poverty within the district.  

 There is a wide geographic variation in levels of child poverty across the district’s 
wards from a high of 33.6% in Moss Bay to just 2.2% in Crummock. 10 of the 31 
wards have a higher percentage of children living in poverty than the Allerdale 
average. 6 of these have a higher percentage than the England average.  
Figures for Allerdale’s wards show Ewanrigg, Moorclose and Moss Bay as 
having levels of child poverty above 25%, the highest being Moss Bay at 33.6% 
and Ewanrigg ward (32.2%) which are clearly significantly higher than the 
Allerdale, county and England figures for 2013. 

4.0 The Proposal

4.1 WCCU has put forward a proposal that has three main elements:

 The opening of a flagship retail quality branch in Workington Town Centre, the 
analysis completed shows that it will make it much easier for existing and new 
members to access services. Workington has been chosen as the major retail 
hub in West Cumbria with 5m visitors every year and is the also the main retail 
hub across the common bond area. It is envisaged that it will be a Monday to 
Saturday retail offer. 

Page 18



 The Allerdale Account – a ‘virtual workplace branch’ in partnership with ABC, 
that will attract savings and loans to those that wish to support local and ethical 
alternatives to banks and credit cards. This is a pilot to address the rapidly 
growing issue of unaffordable debt amongst in-work families, and once 
successful, will be rolled out to other major employers.

 Rebranding and Marketing – WCCU will rebrand and remarket to ensure that 
local people know that they have a safe, ethical and cheaper alternative to banks 
and high interest lenders.

4.2 WCCU has worked with other leading CUs in the region to develop its strategy 
and approach.  Areas of best practice include; the development of retail-quality 
branches, pop-up branches to cover a wider geographical area, strong branding 
augmented by a clear online and digital strategy and the broadening of our 
customer base.  

4.3 The following outcomes are expected:

 Increase lending to £1,800,000 by end of 2021
 Increase membership to 5,200
 Total community benefit in reduced interest charges of £2.14m
 WCCU annual surplus to £93,000 by 2021
 2 new jobs created
 Empty retail unit brought back in to use

5.0 Alternative Options

5.1 Do nothing – this was not seen as a credible option for the Council as it attempts 
to reduce inequalities across the borough.

5.2 Smaller grant funding support – given the need to drive growth forward and the 
need for a retail quality outlet and staff to support, smaller funding would not give 
WCCU the ability to create the sustainable future the Council wants and deliver 
the outcomes set out above.   

6.0 Financial implications

6.1 WCCU have completed financial analysis as part of the development of their 
business plan and the funding required to support the future development. 

6.2 The contributions from the Council will be used to target residents who are 
currently suffering from financial exclusion. 

6.3 The table below sets out how the Council’s funding will contribute to the 
rebranding exercise and a contribution to the new shop. WCCU have a number 
of other funding applications either submitted or currently being developed.

Page 19



 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021  
Workington Flagship 
Branch

      

Build Costs       
Fit-out 12,000      
Design Costs 5,200      
Delivery Management 7,500
Run Costs       
Rent/SC/Utilities 2,600 13,800 14,000 14,200 0  
Branch Manager (job 
creation)

5,500 22,000 33,000 44,000 0  

Total 32,800 35,800 47,000 58,200 0  
       
Incremental Loans 25,000 150,000 250,000 350,000 450,000  
Community Benefit 21,250 127,500 212,500 297,500 382,500  
       
       
Rebranding & 
Marketing

      

Build Costs       
Marketing Services 8,400      
Website Development 7,200 1,400 1,400 1,400 0  
Branch Modelling 6,800      
Print Marketing 4,000 2,800 2,800 2,800 0  
Delivery Management 7,500
 33,900 4,200 4,200 4,200 0  
       
Incremental Loans 25,000 75,000 100,000 150,000 200,000  
Community Benefit 21,250 63,750 85,000 127,500 170,000  
       
       
The Allerdale Account       
Build Costs       
Capital 40,000      
Launch Costs 2,400      
Run Costs       
Ongoing Support 1,467 4,400 4,400 4,400 0  
 43,867 4,400 4,400 4,400 0  
       
Incremental Loans 50,000 100,000 125,000 150,000 250,000  
Community Benefit 42,500 85,000 127,500 170,000 212,500  
       
Total Investment 
Required

110,567 44,400 55,600 66,800 0  

Page 20



Funding from other 
sources

43,867 4,400 4,400 4,400 0  

ABC Investment 66,700 40,000 51,200 62,400 0 220,300

6.4 It is recommended that £220,300 will be funded from the Priorities Fund 
established to support Council priorities in the 2017/8 budget.

7.0 Legal Implications

7.1 The Council can support WCCU as a grant to support the delivery of Council plan 
priorities.

7.2 WCCU is regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and the Prudential 
Regulation Authority. 

7.3 Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 empowers the Council to do anything that 
individuals generally may do, subject to any restrictions as to the use of its 
powers to which the Council was subject when that Act came into force or which 
have subsequently been imposed.

7.4 The Council’s activities are also subject to the European Commission’s rules as 
to the provision of State aid. State aid occurs when public resources are used in 
a way which gives an organisation an advantage over its competitors in a way 
which distorts or is likely to distort competition between European member 
states. The provision of assistance to credit unions is subject to the State aid 
rules and the Council will therefore have to comply with those rules.

7.5 Insofar as the support proposed in this report is not already exempt from or 
allowed under the State Aid rules, the fact that it is earmarked for the overall 
support to people who are ‘excluded’ from current financial transactions and 
markets satisfies the provisions of the State aid rules as it amounts to “Services 
of General Economic Interest”.

8.0 Risk Management

8.1 The investment in WCCU does not generate the number of additional loans, and 
so does not make the impact necessary to reduce the inequalities.

Mitigation: New Chief Operating role, new staff structure, new reporting 
mechanism for staff.

8.2 The investment in WCCU does not generate the number of loans, and interest 
received to make WCCU a sustainable business in future.

Mitigation: New staff roles, focus on rebranding and marketing, and support of 
local businesses such as ABC.

8.3 New markets lead to an increase in delinquency and reduced financial stability 
for the CU. 

Page 21



Mitigation: Over the past six months WCCU has reduced delinquency and 
introduced new processes and procedures to ensure that new members will be 
credit checked and strictly monitored to ensure signs of early delinquency are 
acted upon.

9.0 Recommendations

9.1 It is recommended to:

 To support the development of WCCU

 To support the development of its growth plan including the development of a 
new Workington Town Centre branch, the Allerdale Account and rebranding and 
marketing

 To support WCCU with £220,300 from the Council’s Priorities Fund of £451,000 
over the next four years

Andrew Seekings 
Corporate Director

Page 22



Report Implications

Please delete where applicable.

Community Safety Y Sport N

Financial Y Leisure N

Legal Y Tourism N

Social Inclusion Y E-Government N

Human Rights N North West Regional N

Youth Issues Y European N

Ethnic Minority Issues Y National N

Older People Issues Y Partnership Y

Disability Issues Y Heritage/Culture N

Employment (external to the Council) Y Planning Policy N

Employment (internal) N Enforcement N

Environmental/sustainability N Transport N

Environmental/visual N Asset Management N

Health Y Health and Safety N

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



At a meeting of the Executive held in Council Chamber, Allerdale House on Wednesday 
6 September 2017 at 10.00 am

Members

Councillor Alan Smith (Chair) Councillor Mark Fryer (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Barbara Cannon Councillor Joan Ellis
Councillor Konrad Hansen Councillor Michael Heaslip
Councillor William Jefferson Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes

Staff Present

B Carlin, D Devine, A FitzGerald, I Frost, A Gilbert, N Hardy, C Holmes, J Jackson, 
K Kerrigan, C Nicholson, M Schilling, E Thompson and P Wood

Also Present

B Finlay and H Harrington

133. Minutes of meeting Wednesday 12 July 2017 of Executive 

The minutes of the meeting held on 12 July 2017 were signed as a correct 
record.

134. Declaration of Interests 

11. Reducing Inequalities – Access to Affordable Loans and Savings

Councillor M Heaslip – disclosable pecuniary interest – Director of West 
Cumbria Credit Union

Councillor J Ellis – other registrable interest – Member of West Cumbria Credit 
Union

Councillor M Fryer – other registrable interest – Member of West Cumbria 
Credit Union

I Frost, Chief Executive – other registrable interest – Member of West Cumbria 
Credit Union

E Thompson, Assurance, Risk and Audit Manager – other registrable interest – 
Chair of Supervisory Committee of West Cumbria Credit Union

135. Questions 

None received.

136. Members' Announcements 

None received.

Page 25



137. Q1 Performance Report 2017/18 

The subject of the decision

The Senior Policy and Performance Officer submitted a report which sought to 
advise Members on the Council’s performance at the end of quarter 1 2017/18 
as measured by projects/activities and Key Performance Indicators set out in 
the Corporate Business Plan 2017/18.

The Council was on track with 60 of its 71 key projects/activities, 9 areas were 
being watched and 1 had areas of concern.

There were 51 Key Performance Indicators. 27 of those were on target, 8 were 
within agreed tolerance of target and 10 were significantly worse than target.

Members noted the report.

Councillor A Smith moved that the report be noted; this was seconded by 
Councillor M Fryer. The motion was unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered

None

The reason for the decision

To advise Members of the Council’s performance at the end of quarter 1 
2017/18

The decision

Resolved:

That the report be noted.

138. Quarterly Finance Report April to June 2017 

The subject of the decision

The Head of Financial Services submitted a report which sought to inform 
Members on the Council’s financial performance against budget for the period 
April to June 2017 along with the forecast position to 31 March 2018.

Members noted the headline messages at the end of quarter 1 2017/18, being:

 Revenue expenditure on services, excluding projects funded from 
Earmarked Reserves, was forecast to exceed budget by £109k

 Income from Taxation & Government Grants was forecast to be £293k 
more than budget

 Additional contribution of £184k to General Fund

Page 26



 The gross projected underspend on the capital budget was £6,521k. 
After adjusting for budget carry forwards of £6,404k, to reflect the re-
profiling of expenditure across financial years, the projected outturn 
variance was £117k (favourable)

 Treasury management activities during the quarter were carried out in 
accordance with the Council’s treasury management and investment 
strategies and within the limits established by the approved treasury and 
prudential indicators for 2017/18

 No new external borrowing was undertaken during the first quarter of 
2017/18

Councillor M Fryer asked for an update on how the multi-storey car park in 
Workington was performing since the Council had taken over its operation. The 
Head of Community Services reported that the level of usage of the car park 
was consistent or slightly above similar periods in the previous year.

Councillor B Cannon moved that the report be noted; this was seconded by 
Councillor A Smith. The motion was unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered:

None

The reason for the decision:

To inform Members on the Council’s financial performance against budget for 
the period April to June 2017 along with the forecast position to 31 March 2018.

The decision:

Resolved:

That the report be noted.

139. Cloud based Suite of Systems 

The subject of the decision

The Head of Development Services submitted a report which sought Members 
to award the contract for the supply, implementation, training and data migration 
to a cloud based suite of systems covering the services of Planning, Building 
Control, Planning Policy, Environmental Protection, Environmental Health and 
Housing, Land Charges and Licensing. Up to £150,000 was included in the 
Council’s budget for the project with an additional £25,000 towards third party 
assistance with data extraction and officer hardware.

Councillor K Hansen moved the recommendation set out in the report. This was 
seconded by Councillor M Fryer. The recommendation was unanimously 
agreed.

Page 27



Alternative options considered

There were two options available to Members:

To award the contract to the highest scoring supplier via the ‘Digital Market 
Place Procurement Framework’ for a cloud based suite of systems; or

To continue with existing various software without the software suppliers 
support and maintenance; and upgrade the hardware and storage that provided 
the supporting platform

The reason for the decision

To award the contract for the supply, implementation, training and data 
migration to a cloud based suite of systems covering the services of Planning, 
Building Control, Planning Policy, Environmental Protection, Environmental 
Health and Housing, Land Charges and Licensing. Up to £150,000 was 
included in the Council’s budget for the project with an additional £25,000 
towards third party assistance with data extraction and officer hardware

The decision

Resolved:

That the procurement contract for the supply, implementation, training and 
migration of a cloud based suite of systems covering Planning, Building Control, 
Environmental Health and Housing, Land Charges and Licensing be awarded to 
Supplier 1. The cost for the supply, implementation, training and migration was 
£142,500 and an annual cost of £74,000 calculated on the basis of 75 user 
licences including system support, maintenance, upgrade, enhancements and 3 
Tb data storage. Based on a capped time and materials payment approach.

140. Public Spaces Protection Order - Murray Road, Workington 

The subject of the decision:

The Head of Economic Growth and Head of Governance submitted a report 
which sought approval to make a gated Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) 
in relation to anti-social behaviour, pursuant to powers contained in sections 59 
to 65 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014. The Order 
related to the rear of Murray Road and Argos on Upton Street and a plan was 
shown on the draft Order at Appendix A of the report.

The Executive had resolved to initiate the public consultation on the creation of 
the PSPO at its meeting on 15 February 2017. The consultation was attached 
as Appendix B and the responses to it were attached at Appendix C.

Members noted that the responses received through the consultation 
demonstrated that there was overall public support for a gated PSPO in the 
designated area.

Page 28



Councillor J Ellis moved the recommendations contained in the report. This was 
seconded by Councillor M Fryer. The recommendations were unanimously 
agreed.

Alternative options considered:

To approve the making of a PSPO to the rear of Murray Road, as shown in the 
Draft Order at Appendix A.

Not to approve the making of a PSPO to the rear of Murray Road, as shown in 
the Draft Order at Appendix A.

The reason for the decision:

To make a gated PSPO in relation to anti-social behaviour, pursuant to powers 
contained in sections 59 to 65 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing 
Act 2014.

The decision:

Resolved:

That:

1. The Council make a PSPO for the Designated Area to the rear of Murray 
Road, Workington, as shown in the Draft Order at Appendix A. The 
public consultation demonstrated that there is overall public support for a 
gated PSPO in the Designated Area.

2. The Council monitor and review the impact of the measures contained in 
the PSPO over the next 12 months, and in accordance with the 
legislation, conduct a formal review within three years of the date of the 
Order being made.

141. Local Listing Adoption Arrangements 

The subject of the decision:

The Head of Development Services submitted a report which sought Members 
to consider an amendment to the scope of the local listing adoption 
arrangements.

The Council had agreed to adopt a scheme for the designation of locally listed 
buildings in Allerdale at its meeting on 20 January 2016. The scope of the 
scheme was limited to buildings outside designated Conservation Areas. The 
Council had been asked by Cockermouth Civic Trust to extend the scheme to 
include provision for the local listing of buildings within Conservation Areas.

Councillor M Fryer moved the recommendation contained in the report. This 
was seconded by Councillor B Cannon. The recommendation was unanimously 
agreed.

Page 29



Alternative options considered:

To amend the scope of the local listing adoption arrangements to include 
provision for the local listing of buildings within Conservation Areas.

Not to amend the scope of the local listing adoption arrangements.

The reason for the decision:

To consider an amendment to the scope of the local listing adoption 
arrangements.

The decision:

Resolved:

That the scope of the local listing adoption arrangements be amended to 
include provision for the local listing of buildings within Conservation Areas.

142. Reducing Inequalities - Access to Affordable Loans and Savings 

Councillor M Heaslip left the meeting.

The subject of the decision:

The Corporate Director submitted a report which sought Members to support 
the development of West Cumbria Credit Union (WCCU), to support the 
development of its growth plan including the development of a new Workington 
Town Centre branch, the Allerdale Account and rebranding and marketing and 
to support WCCU with £220,300 from the Council’s Priorities Fund of £451,000 
over the next four years.

The Council Plan 2015-2019 set out that to tackle inequality the Council would 
support people to deal with money problems by working with partners such as 
the credit union to promote safe credit sources.

The West Cumbria Credit Union was a merger between the Allerdale Credit 
Union and Cleator Moor Credit Union. A background was provided in the report.

Members noted that the report set out that across the country, household debt 
had been on the increase for a number of years and significant debt was now 
seen as the norm for many households. Key issues were set out in the report. In 
response, WCCU had put forward a proposal with three main elements:

 The opening of a flagship retail quality branch in Workington Town 
Centre, the analysis completed showed that it would make it much easier 
for existing and new members to access services. Workington has been 
chosen as the major retail hub in West Cumbria with 5m visitors every 
year and was also the main retail hub across the common bond area. It 
was envisaged that it would be a Monday to Saturday retail offer.

Page 30



 The Allerdale Account – a ‘virtual workplace branch’ in partnership with 
Allerdale Borough Council, that would attract savings and loans to those 
that wished to support local and ethical alternatives to banks and credit 
cards. This was a pilot to address the rapidly growing issue of 
unaffordable debt amongst in-work families, and once successful, would 
be rolled out to other major employers.

 Rebranding and Marketing – WCCU would rebrand and remarket to 
ensure that local people knew that they had a safe, ethical and cheaper 
alternative to banks and high interest lenders.

The following outcomes were expected:

 Increase lending to £1,800,000 by end of 2021
 Increase membership to 5,200
 Total community benefit in reduced interest charges of £2.14m
 WCCU annual surplus to £93,000 by 2021
 2 new jobs created
 Empty retail unit brought back in to use

Members noted that the WCCU would need supported by people taking out 
loans and taking on interest and that those who could afford to take out a loan 
should be encouraged to. It was suggested that there could be a specific 
product offered to Allerdale Borough Council employees and Members on a 
salary reduction basis. This could be seen as a positive step by other 
businesses which could then choose to take on similar products.

Councillor A Smith moved the recommendations contained in the report. This 
was seconded by Councillor C McCarron-Holmes. The recommendations were 
unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered:

Do nothing – this was not seen as a credible option for the Council as it 
attempts to reduce inequalities across the borough.

Smaller grant funding support – given the need to drive growth forward and the 
need for a retail quality outlet and staff to support, smaller funding would not 
give WCCU the ability to create the sustainable future the Council wants and 
deliver the outcomes set out above.

The reason for the decision:

The Council has been a partner in developing Credit Unions (CU) across 
Allerdale and the wider West Cumbria area for over 20 years.

The history of CUs in Allerdale was based on a number of community based 
CUs in Workington and Maryport. In 2010 these CUs merged to create the 
Allerdale CU. In 2015, Allerdale CU and Cleator Moor CU merged to form the 
West Cumbria Credit Union (WCCU).

Page 31



The new, larger CU has ambitious plans to reduce the number of residents who 
use high interest doorstep lenders and high street organisations.

At present the total consumer debt in Allerdale alone is over £450m, the WCCU 
growth plan set out in this report aims to reduce the amount of interest paid out 
by Allerdale residents by £2.1m over the next 4 years. Enabling this money to 
be used productively in the Allerdale area.

The decision:

Resolved:

That:

1. The development of the WCCU be supported

2. The development of the WCCU’s growth plan including the development 
of a new Workington Town Centre branch, the Allerdale Account and 
rebranding and marketing be supported

3. WCCU be supported with £220,300 from the Council’s Priorities Fund of 
£451,000 over the next four years

143. Appointment of Representative to the Allerdale Disability Association 

Councillor M Heaslip returned to the meeting.

The subject of the decision

The Head of Governance and Monitoring Officer submitted a report which 
sought the Executive to appoint a Member to serve as the Council’s 
representative on the Allerdale Disability Association, to replace Councillor 
Frank Johnston.

Councillor Alan Smith moved that Councillor Billy Miskelly be appointed to serve 
on the Allerdale Disability Association until 11 July 2018, to replace Councillor 
Frank Johnston. This was seconded by Councillor K Hansen. The motion was 
unanimously agreed.

Alternative options considered

To appoint a representative or not to appoint a representative.

The reason for the decision

To appoint a representative to serve on the Allerdale Disability Association, 
which was a function of the Executive.

Page 32



The decision

Resolved:

That Councillor Billy Miskelly be appointed to serve on the Allerdale Disability 
Association until 11 July 2018, to replace Councillor Frank Johnston.

The meeting closed at 11.05 am

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



CALL-IN PROTOCOL FOR OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

In considering a Call-in decision the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will follow this 
protocol:

Before Receipt of Call-in

Overview and Scrutiny support officers will work with the call-in signatories to 
complete the reasons for call-in. Completed reasons for call-in will be received by the 
Monitoring Officer in consultation with the relevant Chair(s) of Overview and 
Scrutiny, who will then consider whether to call-in the decision.

After Receipt of Call-in and before the meeting

The Monitoring Officer will confirm the validity of the call-in and advise all Councillors 
and Senior Management Team members of the call-in request.

The Leader of the Council will determine which Executive Member should attend the 
call-in, which officer should accompany them and which officer they appoint to 
advise the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the call-in.

The Monitoring Officer will meet with the call-in signatories, to clarify the procedure, 
consider how they will present the call-in and prevent duplication. The Scrutiny 
Coordinator will brief the Chair on the call-in.

Documents

The agenda will contain:

 This call-in Protocol

 The call-in request

 The Executive Members’ decision statement or minutes

 The original report(s) upon which the decision was made

 (In the case that either the minutes or report are exempt a public summary of 
the information will be provided as far as is possible).

Any other document that the Monitoring Officer, Executive Member or call-in 
signatories feel would assist the Committee in considering the call-in.

At the start of the meeting

The Chair will outline the procedure for the meeting, setting the tone and approach 
that will be taken.

Page 35



The meeting

The spokesperson(s) for the Councillors who have made the call-in request (who 
shall be seated together) should outline the reasons for the call-in. Each speaker will 
be time limited to 5 minutes.

The relevant Executive Member explains the rationale for the decision and may be 
supported by officers and the Leader of the Council as appropriate. They shall also 
be seated together. Each speaker will be time limited to 5 minutes.

Councillors who have made the call-in request have the opportunity to question the 
Executive Member.

Other members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee have the opportunity to 
question the Executive Member.

At the discretion of the Chair, other Members present may have the opportunity to 
question the Executive Member or make a brief statement.

At the discretion of the Chair, anyone else present may have the opportunity to make 
a statement (limited to 5 minutes) on the issue.

The Executive Member or the Leader of the Council will have a right of reply to any 
brief statement made on the issue.

Before forming a decision, the Chair may decide to adjourn the meeting in order to 
allow the call-in signatories to reflect on the evidence received and to consider any 
proposals they wish the Committee to consider.

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will debate the issue. Only members of the
Committee and the Officer appointed by the Leader of the Council to advise the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the call-in may speak.

If there is no proposal the Chair or another Member may propose a motion which 
can be voted on in the normal way.

Options available to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

There are only three options available to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee when 
they are considering a call-in:

 Let the decision stand

 Refer the decision back to the decision taker, stating their concerns and the 
decision that the Committee wish the decision taker to make

 Refer the decision to full Council if the decision is contrary to the Policy 
Framework contrary to or not wholly consistent with the budget.

Page 36



Additionally the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may make other 
recommendations as a result of the call-in to relevant bodies, which shall be 
considered after a decision has been reached on the call-in.

When can a decision be called-in?

It is important that the call-in process is not abused, nor causes unreasonable delay; 
the main tool of the overview and scrutiny committee to improve the delivery of 
policies and services should be detailed reviews, rather than call-ins.

The Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules in Part Six of the council’s constitution 
specify formal safeguards for the use of call-in. These include rules about the 
number of members who must request a call-in and a restriction that prevents any 
decision on the same matter being called-in on more than one occasion within a six 
month period. The constitution also suggests that call-ins should be reserved for 
exceptional circumstances. Broadly, a decision can be called-in when members:

 believe it may be contrary to the normal requirements for decision-making;

 believe it may be contrary to the council’s agreed Policy Framework and/or 
budget;

 need further information from the decision-taker to explain why it was taken.

Call-in checklist

The above rules and criteria can be brought together in the following checklist of 
questions (or tests) that can be used when a member is considering a call-in. 
Questions 2-5 can also be used by authors to test draft reports for Executive.

1 Can the decision 
actually be called in?

If the answer to any of questions 1(a)-(g) is yes,
then the decision CANNOT be called-in.

a) Does it relate to a non-executive function? 

b) Was it a non-key decision taken by an officer 
under delegated powers?



c) Was it classed as an urgent decision? 

d) Has the issue been called-in in the last six 
months?



e) Does the decision relate to an existing call-in 
(i.e. decisions taken in relation to a reference 
back)?



f) Does the decision relate to the formulation of 
a policy or budget matter that requires full 
council approval?



Page 37



g) Was it a decision taken by full council? 

2 Was the decision in 
accordance with the 
council’s policy 
framework?

a) What is the relevant policy or strategy? 

b) Is the decision contrary to that policy? 

3 Was the decision in 
accordance with the 
agreed budget or 
budget procedures?

a) Is there funding for the proposal in an agreed 
budget/capital programme?



b) If no, have the rules for virement and 
supplementary estimates been observed?



4 Was the decision 
taken in accordance 
with the principles of 
good decision-making 
(Section 10 of the 
Constitution)?

a) Does the decision comply with the council’s 
constitution, i.e.:

 Scheme of Delegation 
 Rules of Procedure 
 Codes and Protocols? 

b) Was the decision reasonable within the 
common meaning of the word, i.e. rational, 
based on sound judgment?



c) Was the decision reasonable within the legal 
definition of ‘reasonableness’, i.e. was 
everything relevant taken into account, and 
was everything irrelevant disregarded?



d) Was the decision proportionate, i.e. is the 
action proportionate to the desired outcome



e) Was the decision taken on the basis of due 
consultation?



f) Was the decision taken on the basis of 
professional advice from officers?



g) Were human rights respected and/or will the 
decision give rise to any human rights 
implications, i.e. without discrimination, the 
right of an individual to:

Page 38



 liberty and security; 
 the enjoyment of their property; 
 a fair trial; 
 respect for private and family life; 
 freedom of thought, conscience and 

religion;


 freedom of expression; and 
 freedom of assembly and association etc.? 

h) When the decision was taken, was there a 
presumption in favour of openness?



5 Has the decision 
been well explained, 
i.e. do you need more 
information?

a) Was it clear what the reasons for the decision 
were?



b) Was it clear what the desired outcomes were? 

c) Was it clear what alterative options (if any) 
were considered?



d) Was it clear why the alterative options were 
not chosen?



e) Do you need any more 
information/clarification?



Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Call-in: Reducing Inequalities - Access to Affordable Loans and Savings
	Reducing Inequalities Report, 06/09/2017 Executive
	Minutes , 06/09/2017 Executive
	CALL-IN PROTOCOL FOR OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE


